
Hull Conservation Commission                                          Minutes March 26, 2019  Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TUESDAY, March 26 2019 
Meeting held at Hull Town Hall, 2nd Floor 

 

Members Present:  Paul Paquin, Chair, Paul Epstein, Sean Bannen, Chris Oliveri 
Members Absent:  Lou Sorgi 
Staff Present: Chris Krahforst, Conservation Administrator; Sarah Clarren, Assistant Conservation Administrator 
Minutes: Upon a motion by P. Paquin 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 5-0; 
    It was voted to:  Approve the Minutes of March 5, 2019 as drafted. 
   

7:35 62 Central Ave., Map 14/Lot 028 Opening of a Public Hearing on the Request for Determination of 
Applicability filed by William Pierce for work described as construction of a 29’ 9” x 10’ back deck. 

Representatives:  William Pierce 
Abutters/Others: none present 
Documents: “Existing and Proposed Conditions Plan” – Nantasket Survey Engineering, LLC – 1/8/19, last rev. 

3/6/19 
 

W. Pierce presented the proposed project which involves constructing a back porch on sonotubes. 
Upon a motion by P. Epstein 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 3-0;  

 It was voted to: 
Close the Public Hearing and issue a Negative Determination of Applicability; the Determination of 
Applicability was signed. 

 

7:45 Peddocks Island Map 61/Lots111 & 112 Opening of a Public Hearing on the Request for Determination of 
Applicability filed by the Department of Conservation and Recreation for work described as provide 
underground electric power conduit to new yurts located upland. 

Representatives:  Yvonne James (DCR); Susan Kane (DCR) 
Abutters/Others: none present 
Documents: “Peddocks Island New Electrical Conduit Installation” – 2/28/2019 
  “Island Alliance/Existing Conditions Plans” – 12/10/2018 
  “National Flood Hazard Layer Firmette” – 7/17/2012 
 

Y. James presented the proposed project. S. Kane said that the proposed conduit is starting at the existing manhole 
and the conduit would be buried. The proposed work will be done along existing paved walkways, 

Upon a motion by P. Epstein 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 3-0; 
 It was voted to: 

Close the Public Hearing and issue a Negative Determination of Applicability; the Determination of 
Applicability was signed. 

 

7:50 5 Phipps St. Map 27/Lot 033 Opening of a Public Hearing on the Request for Determination of 
Applicability filed by Julie & Andrew Strehle for work described asremove ~ 60% of concrete driveway 
and replace with crushed stone, relocate existing fence to property boundary, reduce rear patio: 490 
sqft to 336 sq ft. Remove 102 sq ft. walkway. 

Representatives:  Julie and Andrew Strehle (owners); Tricia Van Buskirk (landscape architect) 
Abutters/Others: none present 
Documents: “Strehle Residence” – Patricia Van Buskirk Landscape Architecture – 2/28/2019 
  “Existing and Proposed Conditions Plan” – Nantasket Survey Engineering, LLC – 3/13/2019 
 

J. Strehle said that there are a lot of paved surfaces and different heights in the back and that they are proposing to 
remove/reduce size of impervious surface from 490 square feet to 336 square feet. The preexisting brick walkway will 
be removed and the cherry and rosharron tree will remain onsite. She then said that 60% of the driveway will be 
removed and replaced with crushed stone. She added that there is an existing fence which was thought to be the lot 
line, but they want to move the fence to the survey lot line. She stated that the concrete walkway against the house will 
remain. The Commission asked what kind of plantings are proposed to which J. Strehle said hydrangeas, holly, roses, 
and beach grasses. The Commission asked if there were gutters, to which J. Strehle said yes. The Commission 
suggested they consider installing drywells or a rain barrel. A. Strehle mentioned that they are considering constructing 
an outdoor shower. It was mentioned that the homeowners had sandbagged their driveway during storm events, to 

HULL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
253 Atlantic Avenue, 2nd floor 

Hull, MA 02045 
Phone: 781‐925‐8102                              Fax: 781‐925‐8509



Hull Conservation Commission                                          Minutes March 26, 2019  Page 2 of 5 

which the Commission said that sandbagging along property lines redirects water and should not be done; sandbags 
should only be placed along the openings of a primary structure.  
 

One Special Condition was added as follows:  
1)  The fence shall be 6” off the ground 
Upon a motion by P. Epstein 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 3-0; 

 It was voted to: 
Close the Public Hearing and issue a Negative Determination of Applicability; the Determination of 
Applicability was signed. 

 

8:05 5 Lewis St. Map 19/Lot 009 (SE35-1463) Opening of a Public Hearing on the Notice of Intent filed by 
Richard Smith for work described as construct two-car permeable driveway; remove existing asphalt 
walkway.  

Representatives:  Richard Smith 
Abutters/Others: none present 
Documents: “Addition Plan [annotated]” – Michael P. Antonio – 6/21/1999, annotated 2019 
  “Dear Conservation Commissioners” – A;ex Forman – n.d., received 3/25/19 
 

R. Smith presented the proposed project. He stated that they are not removing asphalt, it is slate pavers embedded in 
cement. C. Krahforst said that a representative of an abutter came in and wrote a letter expressing a potential concern 
regarding runoff from the driveway; this letter was read aloud for the record.  
 

Three Special Conditions were added as follows:  
1) The project shall not increase runoff to the abutting properties. This condition does not expire after three 

years. 
2) The permeable paver areas must remain permeable in perpetuity. This condition does not expire after 

three years.  
3) No stone dust is permitted as part of this project.  
Upon a motion by P. Epstein 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 3-0; 

 It was voted to: 
Close the Public Hearing and approve the Order of Conditions with the above listed Special Conditions. The 
Order of Conditions was signed. 

 

8:10 196 Atlantic Ave., Map 51/Lot 031 (SE35-1464) Opening of a Public Hearing on the Notice of Intent filed by 
Jack Mitchell for work described as remove structure and rebuild home on existing FEMA compliant 
foundation; construct permeable driveway. 

Representatives:  Jack Mitchell 
Abutters/Others: Patricia and Thomas Macki (32 Stony Beach Road); Bob Sampson (40 Stony Beach Road) 
Documents:  “Existing and Proposed Conditions Plan“ D.Ray – 3/12/19 
          “Garage and First Floor Plan” – Duxborough Designs – 12/27/18 
 

J. Mitchell presented the proposed project. He stated that the project involves constructing a new home on a pre-
existing foundation. Part of the existing foundation would be cut for a garage. The Commission expressed concern over 
drainage of the property. J. Mitchell said that gutters with downspouts onto the permeable paver driveway are 
proposed, to which the Commission suggested a drywell be constructed to alleviate runoff. J. Mitchell agreed and said 
that the home is pre-fabbed and would be constructed offsite. He added that there is no room for a dumpster onsite 
and therefore any debris materials will be trucked offsite. B. Sampson of 40 Stony Beach Rd said that he is glad to see 
the old house go.  
 

Three Special Conditions were added as follows: 
1) No fill is permitted as part of this project. 
2) The permeable paver areas must remain permeable in perpetuity. This condition does not expire after 

three years.  
3) Two drywells shall be installed for the roof downspouts and shall be designed in a manner to collect and 

infiltrate typical (10-year storm) roof runoff with in the property. The two drywells shall be maintained for 
functionality in perpetuity. 

Upon a motion by P. Epstein 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 3-0; 
 It was voted to: 

Close the Public Hearing and approve the Order of Conditions with the above listed Special Conditions. The 
Order of Conditions was signed. 

 

The Commission took a brief recess.  



Hull Conservation Commission                                          Minutes March 26, 2019  Page 3 of 5 

 

8:25 187 Atlantic Ave., Map 51/Lot 007 (SE35-XXXX) Opening of a Public Hearing on the Notice of Intent filed by 
Collins Civil Engineering Group, Inc. for work described as construct a single family house with Bed and 
Breakfast 

Representatives:  David Klenenz (Engineer); Rose Carle (owner);  
Abutters/Others: Richard Powers (39 Gunrock Ave) 
Documents: “Street Elevation” [3 pgs] – GEV Design, Inc. –  2/9/19 
  “Proposed Building Plan” – Collins Civil Engineering Group, Inc. – 2/19/19 
 

C. Krahforst noted that no DEP File number has been issued.  
 

D. Klenenz, engineer, provided proof of mailing. He stated that there had been a structure on the lot previously, but it 
was torn down in the 1940s or 1950s. What is proposed is a home with a Bed and Breakfast. He stated that Brooke 
Monroe delineated wetland and her report was included in the NOI.  
 

He stated that the pond elevation is at elevation 10’ and the proposed garage slab will be at 10.5.’ In order to allow for 
that elevation, fill is proposed. He stated that fill is needed as there is a steep drop off by the existing driveway. No 
curbcuts are proposed. The elevation at the top of foundation would be elevation 18,’ which is above the VE (FEMA 
Flood Zone) elevation 17’.  
 

A siltfence and wattle is proposed and wattle around the site. He stated that the home would be no closer than 23’ to 
wetland. During construction, the limit of work would be within 6’ to the wetland. He said that he did not know how 
much fill would be needed as he does not know how much fill can be utilized from the site.  
  

The Commission expressed concern over wetland delineation; the wetlands appear to be significantly farther inland 
than what is shown on the plan and it was added that at the very least, a peer review should be conducted on the 
wetlands delineation. Klenenz said that the wetland was delineated in 2016, so he agrees that the wetlands needs to 
be re-delineated. S. Clarren asked what month the wetlands was delineated in 2016, to which Klenenz said October. 
The Commission then stated that during their site visit, the whole property looked like it was covered in wetland plants. 
Klenez stated that he was recently onsite and saw cat-o-nine tails. C. Krahforst stated that he saw a lot of phragmitis 
onsite which went almost all the way up to the driveway. He stated that phragmitis is a wetland species. D. Klenenz 
asked if their wetlands biologist could defend their delineation, to which the Commission said they could in a public 
meeting. A Commissioner suggested that if the applicant was already going to have the property re-delineated that 
they hold off on a peer review. Another Commissioner stated that they strongly don’t agree with the current delineation, 
so unless the wetlands biologist completely changes the line, the delineation should still be peer reviewed. Krahforst 
noted that if the applicant comes back with a new wetlands delineation that the Commission doesn’t agree on and that 
haven’t already voted to conduct a peer review, it may delay the project.  
 

The Commission asked themselves if there were any other major issues, to which a Commissioner expressed concern 
over fill on a coastal bank and suggested that the regulations be revisited. D. Klenenz said that they could work with no 
fill in the back and steps down to the back instead; this would reduce the fill by half.  
 

C. Oliveri arrived at 8:35 pm. 
 

Krahforst said that although he is not a wetlands scientist, it appeared as if the wetland line is close to the road; filling in 
wetlands is difficult to permit. He added that a pile driven foundation may make more sense, given the location and 
resource areas. He then suggested that the applicants touch base with the Building Department about code 
compliance, given the proposed slab elevations. R. Powers of 39 Gunrock Ave said that the elevation is ok and they 
can go higher if the Commission wants. Krahforst said it’s a floodzone and the owner may want to go higher; R. 
Powers of 39 Gunrock Ave stated that the foundation would be flowthrough and have floodvents.  
 

The Commission noted that trench is proposed onsite and expressed concern that it may channel water; R. Powers (39 
Gunrock Avenue) stated that there has never been any water onsite as it’s the highest part of the road. D. Klenenz said 
that the curbing along the property is 6”. He added that they can install some riprap to slow water down and keep 
erosion from happening.  
 

R. Powers of 39 Gunrock Ave asked how the peer review works. Krahforst said the applicant pays for it and the Town 
contracts with the peer reviewer. S. Clarren stated that in accordance with MA General Law, the Town will have to 
solicit three price proposals and then the Town will contract with the selected candidate. She suggested that the 
Commission voted to solicit price proposals, in case the Commission would like to still conduct a peer review after 
reviewing the revised delineation. R. Powers of 39 Gunrock Ave agreed for three price proposals to be solicited.  
 Upon a motion by P. Epstein 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 3-0; 

 It was voted to: 
  Continue the Public Hearing to April 9, 2019 at a time TBD.  



Hull Conservation Commission                                          Minutes March 26, 2019  Page 4 of 5 

 

P. Paquin recused himself. 
8:46 24 Sunset Ave. Map 16 /Lot 006 Opening of a Public Hearing on the Request for Determination of 

Applicability filed by John Burke for work described as fill in basement to local grade using 3/4” stone 
(clean fill) and install flood vents to become FEMA flood compliant.  

Representatives:  John Burke (contractor) 
Abutters/Others: J. Struzziery 
Documents: “Newstadt Property Delineation Map” – applicant drafted 
 

J. Burke stated that there is currently a walk-in basement and crawl space which will be filled for flood mitigation. He 
stated that five flood vents would be installed in the foundation of the home and three in the garage. He stated that an 
Elevation Certificate would be provided after construction has been completed. After work is completed, the home will 
match the exterior grade. The Commission questioned how the work would be completed, to which J. Burke said that it 
would be filled in by hand.   
 

J. Struzziery noted that he is an abutter and has no issues with the project.   
Upon a motion by S. Bannen 2nd by C. Oliveri and a vote of 3-0;  

 It was voted to: 
Close the Public Hearing and issue a Negative Determination of Applicability; the Determination of 
Applicability was signed. 

P. Paquin returned.  
 

8:50 1111 Nantasket Ave., Map 07/Lot 033 (SE35-XXXX) Opening of a Public Hearing on the Notice of Intent 
filed by Town of Hull Sewer Dept for work described as install 16 ft transformer platform on two utility 
poles with scour pads; excavate and extend existing concrete pad to 2x8.5 feet. 

Representatives:  John Struzziery, Hull Sewer Department 
Abutters/Others: none present 
Documents: “Electrical Service Upgrade, 6 pages” – Woodard & Curran – January 2019 
 

J. Stuzziery presented the proposed project which is part of the many flood resiliency measures being put in place. The 
project involves raising the existing ground level transformer 25’ above ground. Service will be brought in from street. 
Part of project to extend the base. He added that the Department hopes to elevate all electric equipment to the 2nd 
floor. Because DEP has not yet issued a file number, the Commission is unable to vote on the project.  
 Upon a motion by P. Epstein 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 4-0; 

 It was voted to: 
  Continue the Public Hearing to April 9, 2019 at a time TBD.  
 

8:55 163 Nantasket Ave. Map 38/Lot 024 (SE35-1460) Continuation of a Public Hearing on the Notice of Intent 
filed by Steve Austin for work described as construction of new ~7300 sf mixed use building. 

Representatives:  Adam Brodsky (Attorney); Steve Austin (owner); Tim Power (engineer) 
Abutters/Others: Susan Green (9 Park Ave.) 
Documents: “Proposerd Re-Development Plans (17 pages) – Nantasket Survey Eng., RBLA Designs, and 

Donahue Designs 
 

A. Brodsky stated that the property is being redeveloped; it is an existing 2-story mixed use (commercial and 
residential) building. The proposed project involves demolishing the existing building and constructing a new mixed use 
building with 41 unit, 4-story building. The site is approximately 24,000 square feet and is in Land Subject to Coastal 
Storm Flowage (FEMA AO). There will be commercial spaces on the 1st floor and residential units will be on the 2nd 
floor and above. The project is currently before the Planning Board for a Special Permit and the project is currently 
being peer reviewed by John Chessia.  
 

T. Powers stated that the project would increase impervious cover by a small amount; it is a mix of redevelopment and 
new development. He stated that it is a challenging site due to grades. In order to meet the standards, the entire roof 
area will be captured and infiltrated into the ground. A portion of the parking lot will also be collected into the same 
infiltration area for recharge; this system allows the site to fully meet the recharge standard. T. Powers said that 
Chessia had a few comments about this in the peer review and these comments will be incorporated into the plan, or 
will be justified, if necessary. He stated that after that is accounted for, there will be less ‘impervious’ cover than pre-
existing. Additionally, catch basins are proposed which will be routed to a treatment device which will then discharge to 
existing drainage that goes under Park Ave, through the development across the street and then out to the Bay. He 
added that this will be an improvement to existing site conditions as it allows for a lot of runoff to be treated and then 
discharged. He stated that the existing two catch basins are flat stone structures. Overall, the proposed project will 
reduce peak flows during medium storms; during large storms, the whole place will be under 3 feet of water.  



Hull Conservation Commission                                          Minutes March 26, 2019  Page 5 of 5 

 

The Commission said that if the project is approved, they will impose a special condition regarding the restriction of 
parking during storm events. The Commission questioned if there was any vegetated buffer on the property, to which 
T. Powers said there is a grass buffer to the abutting property. The Commission suggested additional plantings. The 
Commission suggested capturing some roof runoff to use to water vegetation.  
 

A. Brodsky stated that the proposed project would do a much better job at managing smaller storm events than the 
current site conditions; it will be at or below 10 year storm peak rates. The Commission noted that storms are projected 
to increase in size, severity, and frequency. C. Krahforst asked when the project would go back before the Planning 
Board, to which A. Brodsky said tomorrow (3/26). S. Green of 9 Shore Drive asked how an abutter notification works 
for a condo association, to which S. Clarren said that the abutters list is provided by the Assessor’s Department lists 
whoever is on file to receive notices and is likely the condo association. She added that if the address should be 
changed, the Assessors Department should be notified.   
 Upon a motion by P. Epstein 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 4-0; 

 It was voted to: 
  Continue the Public Hearing to April 9, 2019 at a time TBD.  
 

Certificate of Compliance Requests 
None. 
 

Continued and New Business 
Conservation Bylaw => Local Wetlands Bylaw: C. Krahforst said that the Conservation Department began to draft a 
bylaw and it was presented it to the Advisory Board which believed it was a good idea, but further work is needed. C. 
Krahforst noted that the Town may be able to request a MVP Action Grant to work on a bylaw/s. The proposed bylaw is 
going to be withdrawn and submitted at a later date. A member of the Commission questioned if an average person 
would support a bylaw, to which C. Krahforst noted that Hull is one of three coastal communities that does not have a 
Wetlands Bylaw. He then added that it provides further clarity to the Wetlands Protection Act.  
(new) Extension request for SE35-1316 5/12/16 Order of Conditions (105 Edgewater Rd.): C. Krahforst stated that the 

DPW has requested an extension on SE35-1316. – P. Epstein Motion, S. Bannen 2nd, vote 4-0; OoC extended for 1 year.  
(new) 42 Stoney Beach Road cinder block replacement: C. Krahforst said that a homeowner came in wanting to know 
if a permit would be required to remove and replace cinder blocks to hold up a porch. The Commission questioned if 
there was a permit for the original deck. The Commission then noted that in recent filings, removing and replacing 
anything (deck, driveway, wall, etc.) has required a filing. The Commission determined that an RDA should be filed.  
(new) Open space plan representative: S. Clarren stated that the Town has received a grant to fund a revised Open 
Space Plan and so a committee is being formed to guide the process. The Commission discussed which 
Commissioner should serve as a representative of the Conservation Commission. P. Paquin agreed to represent the 
Commission.  
(new) Beach Grass Planting: P. Epstein said that this year was a successful Beach Grass Planting Day with 100-200 
volunteers. P. Epstein stated that although S. Green is not a Beach Management Committee member, her help was 
greatly appreciated and noted.   
 

Violations and Compliance Issues 
16 and 18 Stony Beach Road: The Conservation Department received a call about installation of an unpermitted wall. 
Upon investigation, it was determined that the wall was pre-existing and it had just been cleaned up and repaired.   
 

9:54   Upon a motion by P. Epstein and 2nd by S. Bannen and a vote of 4-0; 
  It was voted to:  Adjourn. 


